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Clarification Note #1  

GSA internal reference: 260196 
 

Procurement procedure: GSA/IP/10/20  

European Union Governmental Satellite Communications (EU GOVSATCOM) Hubs  
 
 
Question #1: The waiver process requires the company seeking the waiver to “demonstrate the 
implementation of sufficient measures in order to guarantee the protection of the essential interest 
of the security of the European Union or public security, including the security  of the EU Member 
States.”  Will showing that the company meets the requirements of the Security Aspect Letter be 
enough to demonstrate this or does the GSA expect extra security measures from a non -EU 
company?  
 
Answer #1: As per section 3.1(II) and the selection criterion L2. under section 4.2.1 of the Tender 
Specifications, the entity requesting the waiver must submit all necessary evidence to demonstrate 
(a) the exceptional circumstances justifying the request for a waiver, and (b) the implementation of 
sufficient measures to guarantee the protection of the essential interest of the security of the 
European Union or public security, including the security of the EU Member States.  
 
Therefore, the mere proof of compliance to the requirements listed in the Security Aspects Letter is 
not sufficient to justify a request for waiver.  
 
Furthermore, the sufficient measures to guarantee the protection of the essential interest of the 
security of the European Union or public security, including the security of the EU Member States, 
which must be implemented by an entity not fulfilling – fully or partially – the participation conditions, 
depend on the participation condition which the entity is requesting to waive (i.e. points a, b and c 
under section 3.1(I) of the Tender Specifications).  

 
 

Question #2: Can a non-EU company apply for a waiver under 3.1(II), with exceptional 
circumstances, if they are a non-lead member of a consortium?  
 
Answer #2: No; in accordance with sections 3.1(Ia) and 3.1(II) of the Tender Specifications, all 
members of a consortium are considered as one “prime contractor” and must, therefore, be formed 
in accordance with the law of an EU Member State and have their central administration, registered 
office and principal place of business in an EU Member State (if legal persons) or be nationals of one 
of the EU Member States (if natural persons). This condition may not be waived for prime contractors. 
 
Only non-EU subcontractors can request a waiver to the participation condition under section 3.1(Ia).  
 
Question #3: Would GSA consider an extension to the Request to Participate submission deadline 
to allow enough time for consortia to form? 
 



 

Page 2 of 4 

 

 

Answer #3: The GSA is currently assessing this request with the aim to inform interested economic 
operators as soon as possible. 
 
 
Question #4: How is it possible to receive the technical/operational requirements related to this 
procurement procedure? The published documentation does not include detailed technical 
requirements, network diagrams, traffic, link budget information, etc.  
 
Answer #4: Given the nature of the innovation partnership procurement procedure and as explained 
in sections 2.2, 2.2.1, 2.2.2 and 2.2.3 of the Tender Specifications, the detailed technical specifications 
will be made available in Phase II of the procurement procedure only to those Candidates who will be 
pre-selected on the basis of the evaluation of Phase I.  
 
 
Question #5: It is our understanding that the contractor can already include subcontractors 
identified to fulfil certain criteria. However, in section 3.10.2 'supply chain' of the Tender 
Specifications, there is also the statement that a minimum 30% of the value of the contract must be 
subcontracted by means of competitive tendering outside the tenderer's group. Is this related to 
the full contract value or is there a specific reason why this is mentioned under the section 'supply 
chain'?  Can you please clarify this requirement? 
 
Answer #5: As per section 3.10.2 of the Tender Specifications, the contractor must subcontract an 
indicative minimum share of 30% of the value of the contract by means of competitive tendering 
outside the tenderer’s group. This share refers to the overall value of the contract.  
 
Considering that as per section 3.12 of the Tender Specifications the Contracting Authority reserves 
the right to: 

▪ adapt the estimated value of the innovation partnership contract and of Stage 1;  
▪ define the amount of other stages 

as a function of the outcomes of the negotiations/dialogue phase and however before the invitation 
to BAFO (Phase III), the compliance with the mandatory subcontracting requirement under section 
3.10.2 will be assessed in the frame of the Phase II and Phase III of the procurement procedure and 
checked throughout the duration of the innovation partnership contract.  

 

Question #6: Is there any restriction to being part of multiple consortia as a consortium member? Is 
there any restriction to being subcontractors to multiple consortia? And is there any restriction on 
being part of a consortium as a consortium member, while for another one being a subcontractor? 

Answer #6: Participation of the same legal entity in multiple requests to participate/tenders 
(regardless of its quality as prime, consortium member or subcontractor) is not precluded by default.  

However, such a participation shall not lead to any collusion or exchange of information which would 
influence the content of each of the requests/tenders. Therefore, the consortium in question must 
provide clear evidence of the measures which were taken to ensure that the different requests to 
participate/tenders in which the same legal entity participates are independent, specifically that the 
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participation of the same legal entity in multiple requests to participate/tenders did not influence the 
content of each of those requests/tenders.  

In case the consortium does not demonstrate the above-mentioned measures, the concerned 
requests to participate/tenders will be excluded from the procurement procedure in their entirety. 

 

Question #7: It is our understanding that for stage 1 you envisage to conclude multiple innovation 
partnership contracts as a function of the budget available and value for money of the proposals 
formulated by the candidates. Is the 3,100,000-euro budget for stage 1 as such to be seen as the 
budget per partnership contract or as the maximum for the all partnership contracts? 

Answer #7: As per section 3.12 of the Tender Specifications, the indicative budget of 3,100,000.00 
EUR estimated for Contract Stage 1 is the overall budget for all the contracts that the Contracting 
Authority may award.  

Nonetheless, as stated in the aforementioned section 3.12, the Contracting Authority reserves the 
right to adapt the estimated value of the innovation partnership contract and of Stage 1,  as a function 
of the outcomes of the negotiations/dialogue phase and however before the invitation to BAFO (Phase 
III). 

 

Question #8: In section 4.3 of the Annex I to Invitation to Participate “Tender Specifications”, under 
the minimum requirement M2, it is requested to submit “a Mitigation Plan fulfilling the specific 
participation conditions set out in section 3.1.” As the Mitigation Plan is mentioned in the section 
3.2, can you please confirm that the minimum requirement M2 should refer to section 3.2 instead 
of section 3.1? 

Answer #8: The reference to section 3.1 of the Tender Specifications under the minimum requirement 
M2 is correct, as it concerns the section of the document stipulating the participation conditions. 
Nonetheless, it is confirmed that the expected content of the Mitigation Plan is explained in section 
3.2 of the Tender Specifications.  

 
Question #9: In the Annex I to Invitation to Participate “Tender Specifications”:  

▪ under section 4.2, it is written that “[…] the Candidate shall provide a letter of intent 
(template in Annex I.D) signed by every member of the Candidate’s Core Team […]” 

▪ under section 6.6.1 point (5), it is written that “[…] for the proposed subcontractors, duly 
filled in, signed and dated subcontractor Letter of Intent, using the template in Annex I.D.” 

▪ under section 6.6.3, it is mentioned that the letter of intent has to be submitted by all Core 
Team members  
 

Can you confirm which entity has to submit a Letter of Intent (Annex I.D)? Only members of the 
Core Team, only subcontractors, or both members of the Core Team and subcontractors? 
 
Answer #9: The template Annex I.D ‘Subcontractor letter of intent’ must be filled in only by 
subcontractors.  
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The reference to the “members of the Core Team” in the above-mentioned sections is made to reflect 
the fact that subcontractors may also be part of the Candidate’s Core Team. Please refer to section 
3.3 of the Tender Specifications where the “Core Team” of Candidates is defined as “prime contractor, 
including, where relevant, all consortium members, and those subcontractors which are essential in 
order for the Candidate to meet the selection criteria under section 4.2.” 
 
 
Question #10: Under section 6.7 of the Annex I to Invitation to Participate “Tender Specifications”, 
it is written that “[…] the Candidates are advised to […] create hashes of submitted document files 
[…].” Can you clarify if the use of hashes is mandatory or not? 

Answer #10: As per section 6.7 of the Tender Specifications, in case a Candidate decides to submit its 
Request to Participate only in electronic format, the creation of hashes of submitted document files 
is advised by the Contracting Authority, as this will allow the Candidates to resubmit their storage 
media and files in case the ones initially submitted are not readable.  
 
Therefore, in case a Candidate does not submit hashes (as paper printout) into the outer envelope of 
its Request to Participate and the submitted media and files are not readable, the Candidate will not 
be in a position to resubmit the media.  
 
 
Question #11: Under section 6.7 of the Annex I to Invitation to Participate “Tender Specifications”, 
it is stated that “[…] Requests to Participate (RtPs) sent by post mail, express mail and commercial 
courier shall be addressed to this address not later than 23:59 (local time) of date indicated in 
section 2.2.4 […]. Can you confirm: 

▪ if the RtPs have to be received by GSA before the 9th of November, 23:59 or 
▪ if RtPs shall be sent before the 9th of November, 23:59? 

 

Answer #11: It is confirmed that Requests to Participate sent by post mail, express mail and 
commercial courier must be dispatched not later than the 9th November 23:59, as proven by the 
receipt of submission (issued by the postal or courier service).  

 
 

-End of document- 


